
JOSH GREEN, M.D. 
GOVERNOR 

 

SYLVIA LUKE 
LT. GOVERNOR 

 

WENDY GADY 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

   

S T A T E  O F  H A W A I ‘ I  

AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
HUI HO'OULU AINA MAHIAI 

 

State Office Tower • 235 South Beretania Street, Suite 205 • Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813 
 (808) 586-0186 • www.dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc  

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

Held via Teleconference with In-Person Viewing Location 
 

February 15, 2024 
9:00 a.m. 

 
Pursuant to section 92-3.7, Hawaii Revised Statutes, this meeting will be held using interactive conference technology (ICT). Board 
members, staff, persons with business before the Board, and the public may participate remotely online using ICT, or may 
participate via the in-person meeting site which provides ICT.  
 
Interested persons may submit written testimony in advance of the meeting, which will be distributed to Board members prior to the 
meeting.  If possible, we request that testimony be received by our office not less than seventy-two hours prior to the meeting to 
ensure that staff has time to disseminate it and that Board members have time to review it.  Written testimony may be submitted 
electronically to dbedt.adc@hawaii.gov or sent via U.S. Postal Service, or delivered to:  
 

Agribusiness Development Corporation  
235 S. Beretania Street, Suite 205 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813  

 
When testifying via ICT, via telephone, or in-person, you will be asked to identify yourself and the organization you represent, if any.  
Each testifier will be limited to two minutes of testimony per agenda item.  
 
The public may participate in the meeting via:  
 

ICT:   click here to join  
 

Telephone:  (669) 900-6833, Webinar ID: 823 4432 1005 
 

In-Person:  at the meeting location indicated below  
 
ICT ACCESS  
To view the meeting and provide live oral testimony, please use the link above. You will be asked to enter your name in order to 
access the meeting as an attendee. The Board requests that you enter your full name, but you may use a pseudonym or other 
identifier if you wish to remain anonymous. You will also be asked for an email address. You may fill in this field with any entry in an 
email format, e.g., ****@****.com.  
 
As an attendee, your microphone will be automatically muted. When the Chairperson asks for public testimony, you may click the 
Raise Hand button found on your Zoom screen to indicate that you wish to testify about that agenda item. The Chairperson or staff 
will individually enable each testifier to unmute their microphone. When recognized by the Chairperson, please unmute your 
microphone before speaking and mute your microphone after you have finished speaking.  
 
For ICT, telephone, and in-person access, when testifying, you will be asked to identify yourself and the organization, if any, that you 
represent. Each testifier will be limited to two minutes of testimony per agenda item.  
 
TELEPHONE ACCESS  
If you do not have ICT access, you may get audio-only access by calling the Telephone Number listed above. 
 
Upon dialing the number, you will be prompted to enter the Meeting ID that is listed next to the Telephone Number above.  After 
entering the Meeting ID, you will be asked to either enter your panelist number or wait to be admitted into the meeting. You will not 
have a panelist number.  Please wait until you are admitted into the meeting.  
 
When the Chairperson asks for public testimony, you may indicate you want to testify by entering “#” and then “9” on your 
telephone’s keypad. After entering “#” and then “9”, a voice prompt will let you know that the host of the meeting has been notified. 

001

mailto:dbedt.adc@hawaii.gov
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82344321005


Board Meeting Agenda 

February 15, 2024 

 

State Office Tower • 235 South Beretania Street, Suite 205 • Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813 
 (808) 586-0186 • www.dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc 

When recognized by the Chairperson, you may unmute yourself by pressing “#” and then “6” on your telephone. A voice prompt will 
let you know that you are unmuted. Once you are finished speaking, please enter “#” and then “6” again to mute yourself.  
 
For ICT, telephone, and in-person access, when testifying, you will be asked to identify yourself and the organization, if any, that you 
represent. Each testifier will be limited to two minutes of testimony per agenda item.  
 
Instructions to attend State of Hawaii virtual board meetings may be found online at https://cca.hawaii.gov/pvl/files/2020/08/State-of-
Hawaii-Virtual-Board-Attendee-Instructions.pdf. 
 
IN-PERSON ACCESS 
There will also be one meeting location, open to the public, which will have an audio-visual connection. That meeting will be held at:  
 

State of Hawaii, Leiopapa A Kamehameha  
State Office Tower Building  
235 S. Beretania St., Suite 205  
Honolulu, HI 96813  

 
For ICT, telephone, and in-person access, when testifying, you will be asked to identify yourself and the organization, if any, that you 
represent.  Each testifier will be limited to two minutes of testimony per agenda item.  
 
LOSS OF CONNECTIVITY  
In the event of a loss of ICT connectivity, the meeting will be recessed for a period not to exceed thirty minutes to restore 
connectivity with all board members and the public in-person access location noted above. In the event that audio connectivity is re-
established within thirty minutes without video connectivity, interested participants can access the meeting via the telephone number 
and Meeting ID number noted above. In the further event that connectivity is unable to be restored within thirty minutes, the meeting 
will be automatically continued to a date and time to be posted on the ADC website at https://dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc/ no later than 
close of business the next business day.  New ICT, telephone, and in-person access information will be posted on the website no 
less than twenty-four hours prior to the continued meeting date.  Alternatively, if a decision is made to terminate the meeting, the 
termination will be posted on the ADC website.  
 
SPECIAL ASSISTANCE  
If you require special assistance, accommodations, modifications, auxiliary aids, or services to participate in the public meeting 
process, including translation or interpretation services, please contact staff at (808) 586-0186 or by email at dbedt.adc@hawaii.gov. 
 
Please allow sufficient time for ADC staff to meet requests for special assistance, accommodations, modifications, auxiliary aids, 
translation, or interpretation services.  
 
NOTE: MATERIALS FOR THIS AGENDA WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW IN THE ADC OFFICE, 235 S. BERETANIA 
STREET, SUITE 205, HONOLULU, HAWAII 96813 ON AND AFTER FEBRUARY 9, 2024.  
 

Agribusiness Development Corporation Non-Discrimination Statement 
 
The Agribusiness Development Corporation does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex, national origin, age, or disability, 
or any other class as protected under applicable federal or state law, in administration of its programs, or activities, and the 
Agribusiness Development Corporation does not intimidate or retaliate against any individual or group because they have exercised 
their rights to participate in actions protected by, or oppose action prohibited by, 40 C.F.R. Parts 5 and 7, or for the purpose of 
interfering with such rights.  
 
If you have any questions about this notice or any of the Agribusiness Development Corporation’s non-discrimination programs, 
policies, or procedures, you may contact:  
 

Mark Takemoto  
Acting Title VI Non-Discrimination Coordinator  
235 S. Beretania St., Ste 205 Honolulu, HI 96813  
(808) 586-0186  
dbedt.adc.titlevi@hawaii.gov  

 
If you believe that you have been discriminated against with respect to an Agribusiness Development Corporation program or 
activity, you may contact the Acting Non-Discrimination Coordinator identified above.   

002

https://cca.hawaii.gov/pvl/files/2020/08/State-of-Hawaii-Virtual-Board-Attendee-Instructions.pdf
https://cca.hawaii.gov/pvl/files/2020/08/State-of-Hawaii-Virtual-Board-Attendee-Instructions.pdf
https://dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc/
mailto:dbedt.adc.titlevi@hawaii.gov


Board Meeting Agenda 

February 15, 2024 

 

State Office Tower • 235 South Beretania Street, Suite 205 • Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813 
 (808) 586-0186 • www.dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc 

AGENDA 
 

A. Call to Order 
 
B. Approval of Minutes 
 

1. Regular Session Minutes, November 16, 2023 
 

2. Regular Session Minutes, January 16, 2024 
Defer to March meeting 

 
3. Executive Session Minutes, January 16, 2024 

Defer to March meeting 
 
C. Chairperson’s Report 
 
 1. None 
 
D. Committee Reports 
 
 1. None 
 
E. Action Items 
 

1. Request for approval to refer License Agreement No. LI-GA1713 issued to Touan 
Farm LLC for 25.191 tillable acres at Wahiawa, Oahu, Hawaii, TMK (1) 7-1-
012:001 (por.), to the Department of the Attorney General for enforcement action 

 
2. Request for approval to enter into a memorandum of understanding between 

ADC, Hawaii Technology Development Corporation, and Natural Energy 
Laboratory of Hawaii Authority, and Hawaii Department of Agriculture to 
encourage, support, and facilitate planning and research-related activities 

 
3. Request to re-authorize the Board’s delegation of authority to the Executive 

Director to execute non-extraordinary rights-of-entry without Board approval 
 
4. Appointment of members to the Board’s standing Administration Committee (no 

submittal) 
 
5. Request for approval to establish a permitted interaction group to provide 

recommendations to the Board related to ADC’s strategic plan regarding land (no 
submittal) 

 
6. Request for approval to establish a permitted interaction group to provide 

recommendations to the Board related to ADC’s strategic plan regarding water 
(no submittal) 

 
7. Request for approval to establish a permitted interaction group to provide 

recommendations to the Board related to ADC’s strategic plan regarding 
agribusiness efficiencies (no submittal) 

 

003



Board Meeting Agenda 

February 15, 2024 

 

State Office Tower • 235 South Beretania Street, Suite 205 • Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813 
 (808) 586-0186 • www.dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc 

8. Discussion regarding the status of Lease Agreement No. LE-K1201 assigned to 
the State of Hawaii, Department of Education. The Board may go into executive 
session to consult with the Board’s attorney on questions and issues pertaining 
to the Board’s powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and liabilities.(no submittal) 

 
9. Discussion and action on letter from Senator Donovan Dela Cruz asking the ADC 

Board to waive attorney-client privilege with regards to the August 8, 2023 
executive session minutes relating to candidate interviews, discussion of 
executive director salary, and board selection of executive director, continued 
from January 18, 2024 board meeting. The Board may go into executive session 
to consult with the Board’s attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the 
Board’s powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and liabilities. 

 
F. Informational Items 
 

1. Presentation by Dane Wicker, Deputy Director, Department of Business, 
Economic Development, and Tourism regarding the budget process for the State 
of Hawaii 

 
2. Update regarding sunshine lawsuit filed by Public First Law Center, Civil No. 24-

0-000-50, First Circuit Court, State of Hawaii. The Board may go into executive 
session to consult with the Board’s attorney on questions and issues pertaining 
to the Board’s powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and liabilities. 

 
3. Presentation by Brian Miyamoto, Executive Director, Hawaii Farm Bureau, 

regarding the 2024 Farm Fair 
 

4. Executive Director’s Report regarding training updates, restrictive use 
easements, ADC’s strategic plan, HPP machine procurement, Kokee Ditch 
modifications, Ag Days at the Capitol, ADC staffing, introduction of new hires, 
and budget update. 

 
G. Adjourn  

 
 
The Board may go into executive session on any agenda item pursuant to the exceptions provided under 

section §92-5, Hawaii Revised Statutes. 
 

 

004



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on November 16, 2023 
Via Zoom Teleconference and/or In-Person at 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 204, Honolulu, HI 96813 

1 

Pursuant to section 92-3.7, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), this meeting was held remotely with Board 

members, Staff, Applicants, and the Public participating via Zoom meeting venue, and an In-Person meeting 

location available for public participation at the State of Hawaii, Leiopapa A Kamehameha, State Office Tower 

Building, 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 204, Honolulu, HI 96813. 

Members Present, virtually: 

Warren Watanabe, Member-At-Large, Chair (Chair) 
Glenn Hong, Member-At-Large (Mr. Hong) (joined the meeting at 9:17 A.M. – had connection problems) 
Dexter Kishida, designee for HBOA Ex Officio Member Sharon Hurd (Mr. Kishida) 
Jason Okuhama, Member-At-Large (Mr. Okuhama) 
Karen Seddon, Member-At-Large (Ms. Seddon)   
Russell Tsuji, designee for DLNR Ex-Officio Member Ms. Dawn Chang (Mr. Tsuji) (left the meeting at 
10:00 A.M.) 
Jayson Watts, Maui County Member (Mr. Watts) 
Dane Wicker, designee for DBEDT Ex-Officio Member James Tokioka (Mr. Wicker)  

Members Excused: 

Lyle Tabata, Kauai County Member, Vice-Chair  

Counsel Present, virtually:  

Delanie Prescott-Tate, Deputy Attorney General (Ms. Prescott-Tate) 

Staff Present, virtually:  

Wendy Gady, Executive Director (Ms. Gady) 
Mark Takemoto, Executive Assistant (Mr. Takemoto) 
Ken Nakamoto, Project Manager (Mr. Nakamoto) 
Lyle Roe, Property Manager (Mr. Roe) 

Guests Present, virtually: 

18083757151 
18086527531 
Allison Fraley, County of Kauai (Ms. Fraley) 
Amy Perruso 
Anderson 
Bryan Yee, Deputy Attorney General (Mr. Yee) 
Dani Chu, Diamond Head Seafood 
John Doe 
Kawai Warren (Mr. Warren) 
Kendall M 
Kylie Wager Cruz, EarthJustice (Ms. Cruz) 
Mark Ladao 
Mary Rose Manar (Ms. Manar) 
Mike Faye 
Mike Irish, Diamond Head Seafood (Mr. Irish) 
Mike Yonemura, Diamond Head Seafood (Mr. Yonemura) 

B-1

005



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on November 16, 2023 
Via Zoom Teleconference and/or In-Person at 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 204, Honolulu, HI 96813 
 

2 
 

Ryan Murashige, Diamond Head Seafood 
Scott Ishikawa 
PTower 
Sean Andrade 
Troy Antonlis, Diamond Head Seafood (Mr. Antonlis) 
 
Guests Present, physical location:   
 
None. 
 
A. Call to Order 

 
Chair Watanabe called the virtual meeting to order at 9:04 a.m. 

 
Chair conducted a roll call of the Board.  Chair called the name of each board member and asked them 
to identify their presence and to state who if anyone over the age of eighteen was present in the room 
with them.  Chair stated that the roll call served as the roll call vote, and for each subsequent vote, the 
Chair would ask if there were any objections.  If there are no objections the motion would be approved 
on the same basis as the roll call. 

 
Roll call:  Chair, Mr. Kishida, Mr. Okuhama, Ms. Seddon, Mr. Tsuji, Mr. Watts, and Mr. Wicker 
acknowledged attendance with no guests present.  Mr. Hong joined the meeting at 9:17 A.M.  Mr. Tsuji 
left the meeting at 10:00 A.M.  

 
B. Approval of Minutes 

 
1. Board Meeting Minutes, October 3, 2023 

 
Chair called for a motion to approve the October 3, 2023 special meeting minutes. 
 
Motion to approve:  Mr. Wicker; Second:  Ms. Seddon. 
 
Chair asked if there was anything from the staff.  There was none. 
 
Chair asked if there was anyone from the public who wished to give testimony.  There was none. 
 
Chair asked for board discussion.  There was none.   
 
Chair called for the vote.  Hearing no objections, the motion was approved.  Vote:  7-0. 
 

2. Board Meeting Executive Session Minutes, October 3, 2023 
 
Chair stated that during the executive session held on October 3, 2023 the Board discussed a hiring 
decision with the Board’s counsel. HRS sections 92-4, 92-5(a)(2), and 92-5(a)(4) allows the 
meeting to be closed to the public when necessary to discuss matters affecting privacy and to 
consult with the Board’s attorney. In order to maintain the confidentiality of matters discussed in the 
executive session the draft minutes were provided directly to the board members for review. Chair 
asked that the Board respect the confidentiality of the executive session held on October 3, 2023 
when discussing approval of these minutes. 

 

006



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on November 16, 2023 
Via Zoom Teleconference and/or In-Person at 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 204, Honolulu, HI 96813 
 

3 
 

Chair called for a motion to approve the October 3, 2023 executive session minutes. 
 
Motion to approve:  Mr. Wicker; Second:  Mr. Okuhama. 
 
Chair asked if there was anything from the staff.  There was none. 
 
Chair asked if there was anyone from the public who wished to give testimony.  There was none. 
 
Chair asked for board discussion.  There was none. 
 
Chair called for the vote.  Hearing no objections the Executive Session minutes of October 3, 2023 
were approved.  Vote: 7-0. 
 

3. Board Meeting Minutes, October 19, 2023 
 
Chair called for a motion to approve the October 19, 2023 regular session minutes. 
 
Motion to approve:  Ms. Seddon; Second:  Mr. Okuhama. 
 
Chair asked if there was anything from the staff.  There was none. 
 
Chair asked if there was anyone from the public who wished to give testimony.  There was none. 
 
Chair asked for board discussion.  There was none.   
 
Chair called for the vote.  Hearing no objections, the motion was approved.  Vote:  7-0. 

 
Informational Item F-3 was taken out of order due to time constraints. 
 

3. Presentation by Mike Yonemura on behalf of Diamond Head Seafood regarding Oahu Feed Mill 
in Kalaeloa, Oahu, Hawaii 

 
Chair called on representatives of Diamond Head Seafood to give their presentation.   
 
Mr. Irish introduced his team, then turned the meeting over to Mr. Yonemura and Mr. Antonelis who 
gave a PowerPoint presentation.  See attached presentation.    

 
Mr. Hong joined the meeting at 9:17 A.M. 
 

Mr. Yonemura thanked the Board for giving them the opportunity to share their project and give an 
update at where they were at now, and asked if there were any questions. 

 
Ms. Gady asked if they had a projection of what staffing levels would look like for the feed mill once 
production gets going.   

 
 Mr. Yonemura said outside of our current team they may add 4-5 new employees. 
 
 There were no further questions.  Chair thanked Mr. Irish and his team for the presentation.    
 

C. Chairperson’s Report 

007



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on November 16, 2023 
Via Zoom Teleconference and/or In-Person at 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 204, Honolulu, HI 96813 
 

4 
 

 
1. None 
 

D. Committee Reports 
 
1. None 
 

E. Action Items 
 
1. Request for approval to remove the “Sand site” from the Agribusiness Development 

Corporation’s portfolio of available lands in Kekaha, Kauai, Hawai‘i and issue notice to 
vacate the Pohaku O’Kauai Materials, LLC, TMK 1-2-002:001 (por). 

 
Chair asked for a motion to approve:  Mr. Wicker; Second: Mr. Tsuji. 
 
Chair asked for staff presentation. 
 
Mr. Roe stated the right of entry license agreement for Pohaku O’Kauai was executed in 2013.  
They have removed quite a bit of sand.  Last year we terminated the license and gave Pohaku a draft 
license that updated the terms including an increase in the rate.  The license was never executed.  
For these reasons and because ADC has found internal uses for the sand, we would like to remove 
the site from our portfolio of lands that we license and reserve the raw resource for ourselves.  
That’s the gist of it. 
 
Mr. Wicker said Mr. Tsuji has his hand up. 
 
Chair called on Mr. Tsuji. 
 
Mr. Tsuji had a question for staff.  He was going through the submittal and noticed that an appraisal 
had just been done.  How was the rent established in the first place?  And secondly, if ADC has not 
utilized appraisals in establishing rents with this inventory, I strongly urge you to do so.  With ceded 
lands, there is a public trust responsibility that goes along with managing those lands but there is 
apparently a very significant difference in the price that was being charged versus the appraised 
value.  Can you comment on that? 
 
Mr. Roe stated he was not with ADC when the license was executed and cannot confirm how the 
original rate was established.  Once the appraisal was done, notice was given to Pohaku that ADC 
was going to open a discussion about increasing the rate.   
 
Mr. Tsuji noted that the rent for an area of Campbell Industrial Park was $500.00 per year is 
markedly below fair market value.  There is a large divide between what ADC is charging for rent 
in Campbell and the fair market value.  ADC might need to re-evaluate the rents based off of this 
discrepancy. 
 
Mr. Roe stated that he would have to talk to legal to see if we can go in and change rates based on 
whether we have evidence that the rates should be different.  He would defer to the AG’s office on 
that. 
 
Ms. Prescott-Tate stated that if Mr. Tsuji is talking about the feed mill, she does not believe it sits 
on ADC property. 

008



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on November 16, 2023 
Via Zoom Teleconference and/or In-Person at 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 204, Honolulu, HI 96813 
 

5 
 

 
Mr. Tsuji asked if that’s the case why were they presenting? 
 
Mr. Nakamoto explained that ADC has a contract with Diamond Head Seafood to do this pilot project 
for the feed mill.  The property is with the Hawaii Department of Agriculture (HDOA), which is the 
one who established rent on this project. 
 
Mr. Tsuji still wanted ADC to look at the rents on the leases and agreements they have on land.  The 
board should know the fair market value of rent, so the Board does not believe that the rent they are 
currently charging is fair market value, when it’s not.  Then they can evaluate if there is a 
justification to go below fair market value.   
 
Mr. Roe reiterated that once ADC became aware of the sand appraisal, ADC issued notice to 
Pohaku that they were going to renegotiate the royalty and rent. 
 
Mr. Wicker asked for clarification on the structure of Kekaha lands.  KAA has an agreement with 
ADC to manage the land and does that mean they don’t set the lease rates that also comes through 
the board? 
 
Mr. Roe explained that KAA sets their own infrastructure rates, which KAA assesses based on a 
cost per acre, per year.  This is unrelated to the ADC lease rents.   
 
Mr. Wicker asked that, on top of these lease rents, were there some sort of CAM [common area 
maintenance] fee. 
 
Mr. Roe agreed and noted that for Pohaku the Board originally approved a lease fee as well as a 
royalty fee but when the right of entry license agreement was executed, it did not contain the same 
terms that were approved by the Board.  When staff discovered the executed right of entry license 
agreement did not match the terms approved by the Board, staff sought approval from the board to 
terminate the license.   
 
Chair asked if there were any questions from the board.  There were none. 
 
Chair asked if anyone from the public wished to give testimony. There was none. 
 
Mr. Roe noted that Mr. Hong has his hand up. 
 
Mrs. Gady stated that in the chat box, Mr. Hong says his microphone isn’t working. 
 
Chair suggested that Mr. Hong put any questions into the chat box. 
 
Mr. Okuhama had a question about the best management practices (BMP) letter mentioned in the 
submittal related to the 2018 Clean Water Act violation case.   
 
Mr. Roe stated that ADC contracts with Stantec to conduct BMP inspections once a year to comply 
with the EarthJustice settlement agreement in the Clean Water Act case.  Findings from the 
inspections are shared with EarthJustice.  The tenants receive violation notices for noncompliance 
with the BMPs.  These are separate and distinct inspections from the staff inspections.   
 
Mr. Okuhama asked if there were any issues with this tenant. 

009



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on November 16, 2023 
Via Zoom Teleconference and/or In-Person at 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 204, Honolulu, HI 96813 
 

6 
 

 
Mr. Roe stated that there is a pit in the ground and there’s no NPDES [National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System] permit.  No big violations but clearly things that need to be cleaned up. 
 
Chair asked if there were any questions from the board.  There was none. 
 
Chair called for the vote.  Hearing no objections, the motion was approved:  8-0.  
 
Mr. Roe stated that Mr. Hong noted in the chat that he had no objection.   

 
2. Request for the board to make a determination that it is necessary to conduct limited meetings 

for on-site inspections of ADC assets on Oahu and Kauai for purposes related to the Board’s 
business of which public attendance is not practicable; and for approval to submit a limited 
meeting schedule to the Director of the Office of Information Practices for limited meeting 
concurrence. 

 
Chair called for a motion to approve.   
 
Motion to approve: Ms. Seddon; Second: Mr. Okuhama. 
 
Chair asked for staff presentation.  There was none. 
 
Chair asked if anyone from the public wished to give testimony.  There was none. 
 
Chair stated that HRS section 92-3.1 allows the board to hold a limited meeting that is not open to 
the public when the Board determines that it is necessary to meet at a location that is dangerous to 
health or safety, or if the Board determines that it is necessary to conduct an on-site inspection of a 
location.  To allow a limited meeting, at a regular noticed public meeting, after public discussion, 
the Board must determine that the specific locations on Oahu and Kauai, due to health and safety 
concerns, which makes public attendance not practicable.  The limited meeting must be videotaped 
and later replayed for the public and no decisions may be made at the meetings.   
 
Chair stated for the Board as a group to inspect its properties on Oahu and Kauai outside of a public 
meeting, the Board needs to make findings and determinations necessary for the Board to hold a 
limited meeting. 
 
Mr. Okuhama agreed that site visits need to be limited.  Board site visits to ADC lands on Oahu and 
Kauai need to be limited and not really open to the public due to safety concerns.  These are active 
farms under productive business with chemicals, pesticides, machinery, equipment, and other 
hazards that could be very dangerous.  Tenants also have liability if someone gets hurt on the 
property, and so on.  There are also privacy issues due to confidential business operations, etc.   
 
Chair asked if there were any other comments from the board.  There were none. 
 
Chair asked Ms. Prescott-Tate if the exact property locations should be specified or would locations 
on Oahu and Kauai be sufficient.   
 
Ms. Prescott-Tate stated perhaps we could name the areas or towns where the ADC properties are 
located such as Kalepa or Kekaha, and Wahiawa, and we could fill-in the specific addresses later.  

010



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on November 16, 2023 
Via Zoom Teleconference and/or In-Person at 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 204, Honolulu, HI 96813 
 

7 
 

And we do have some property and potential property in Waialua.  So that will be the extent of our 
site visit, if we could find that those are the sites we can fill in the exact addresses later. 
 
Chair stated another question for the board is should they hold a public meeting on Oahu and Kauai 
before inspecting the properties.  

  
Chair asked if there were any other comments from the board.  There was none. 
 
Chair asked Ms. Prescott-Tate if we do hold a public meeting, it would have to be publicly noticed, 
correct? 
 
Ms. Prescott-Tate responded correct, and asked if anyone from the public had any insight.  Would 
they like the Board to have a meeting in Wahiawa or on Kauai? 
 
Chair asked if anyone from the public wished to give testimony.  There was one. 
 
Ms. Manar said she was from Kekaha and that it would be a good idea to have public meetings 
periodically in Kekaha.  It is a small and close-knit community, and they would like to be more 
involved.   
 
Mr. Nakamoto said there was one more hand raised. 
 
Mr. Warren said he was the Kapena for Na Kia‘i Kai and we would also like to have public 
meetings so we can understand the impacts of ADC tenants on the near shore fisheries, our people, 
and our land.  Thank you. 
 
Chair asked Ms. Prescott-Tate if he needs a motion. 
 
Ms. Prescott-Tate said that before the motion she will read the findings of the Board:  ADC would 
like to do site visits to Wahiawa, Waialua, Kekaha, and Kalepa.  The Board would like to schedule a 
public meeting on Kauai before that visit.  The Board’s findings are that the reason why it is not 
practicable to have the public go along on the site visit is because these farms are in active 
production.  There are chemicals, pesticides, unstable footing, ditches; it’s dangerous to the public.  
If an injury occurs, the tenant who is paying for their own insurance may be liable for the injury.  
There are privacy interests involved for the tenants, protection for the tenants confidential business 
information, and the tenants have their personal possessions on the property.  Based on those 
considerations it might not be a good idea to have the public roaming around on ADC land occupied 
by private parties.  Anymore? 
 
Mr. Okuhama asked if this was for getting concurrence from the Office of Information Practices? 
 
Ms. Prescott-Tate said correct these are the findings we will provide to the Director of the Office of 
Information Practices asking for concurrence.   
 
Chair asked if the Board was clear on what was being proposed.  There was no response. 
 
Chair called for a vote.  Hearing no objections, the motion was approved:  8-0. 

 
F. Informational Items 

 

011



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on November 16, 2023 
Via Zoom Teleconference and/or In-Person at 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 204, Honolulu, HI 96813 
 

8 
 

Chair reminded the Board that the following items are for informational purposes only so there will 
be no motion or vote needed. 

 
1. Presentation by Allison Fraley on behalf of County of Kauai for an update regarding a 

proposed new landfill site to be located near Kekaha, Kauai, Hawaii TMK (4) 1-2-002:001 
(por.) 

 
Ms. Fraley gave a PowerPoint presentation regarding the proposed new landfill site to be located 
near Kekaha, explaining what Kauai County had been doing for the last twenty years in trying to 
site a new landfill.  See attached presentation.   
 
Following the PowerPoint presentation Ms. Fraley asked if there were any questions.  There were 
none. 
 
Chair thanked Ms. Fraley and asked if any of the board members had a question.  There were none. 
 
Chair asked if there were any comments from the public and called on Ms. Cruz to provide 
testimony. 
 
Ms. Cruz introduced herself as an attorney with EarthJustice and explained that they’ve been 
partnering with community groups on the west-side of Kauai for many years to protect the 
environmental and cultural resources in the area.  ADC can and should put a stop to Kauai County’s 
plans to put a new landfill on the Mānā plain and should do it now because the county will then 
have more time to explore other options before landfill capacity is reached.  It doesn’t take an expert 
to know that landfills are not an agricultural purpose and doesn’t fit within ADC’s mission.  From 
my understanding, the list of sites the county is considering is based on an old analysis from the 
early 2000’s and the list has only been whittled down since then.  Ms. Fraley mentioned Act 73, 
which prohibits a landfill within a ½ mile of a residential area, but just mauka of the proposed sites 
are DHHL lands where there are residential lots proposed.  Ms. Fraley also mentioned tsunami 
inundation concerns.  There’s a DOH rule saying that you can’t site a new landfill in a tsunami 
inundation area, but for some reason Kauai County can’t find that map that falls under the rule, and 
it’s undisputed that the Mānā plain is a tsunami evacuation area.  On top of that, the proposed site is 
located really close to, if not in, a sea level rise exposure area.  The Mānā plain is all former swamp 
land and our expert in another lawsuit against ADC said that all of the water in the ditches pulls 
ground water from the area and into the ocean, so it doesn’t make sense to put a landfill in this area.  
And on top of that, there’s a really long history of concentrating harmful facilities on the west-side.  
As Ms. Fraley mentioned, the only other landfill on the island is in Kekaha.  There’s the old sugar 
plantation lands and related infrastructure that are still contaminating the community today.  We 
have ongoing water diversions, heavy use of restricted-use pesticides, and gravel and asphalt plant.  
I’m here to plant the seed and let ADC know that we strongly disagree that there should be a landfill 
on the Mānā plain.  Thank you.   
 
Chair thanked Ms. Cruz for her testimony and asked if there was anyone else who wanted to testify. 
 
Mr. Nakamoto responded yes, Mr. Warren. 
 
Chair said, go ahead Mr. Warren. 
 
Mr. Warren stated he is the Kapena for Na Kia‘i Kai and a cultural practitioner that gathers from the 
shorelines and rivers on West Kauai.  He is a Department of Hawaiian Homelands (DHHL) 

012



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on November 16, 2023 
Via Zoom Teleconference and/or In-Person at 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 204, Honolulu, HI 96813 
 

9 
 

beneficiary living in the Kekaha Hawaiian homesteads and is wait-listed for a pastoral site situated 
very close to this proposed site.  Na Kia‘i Kai strongly opposes this new hazardous waste forever 
landfill site proposal because of the environmental risk to near shore fisheries.  The proposed site is 
located at sea level, surrounded by ditches that will discharge hazardous waste into our oceans 
during seasonal flooding and hurricane storm surges and flooding.  As we learned from hurricane 
Katrina, the levies and pumps could not prevent flooding in Louisiana.  Additionally, during 
flooding this hazardous waste material will contaminate our aquifers and spring waters located 
adjacent to this site as it percolates into the ground.  DHHL is developing the land mauka of this 
proposed new land site for Kuliana subdivision, 244 homes.  DHHL subdivisions are sited adjacent 
to this new landfill site.  Future residents would be subjected to the smell of trash 24 hours a day.  
Furthermore, they will have to drive past the rubbish dump on a daily basis going up to their 
subdivision and coming out.  Kawaiele Bird Sanctuary, 0.30 miles from the proposed site.  During 
seasonal flooding, the sanctuary will be subjected to hazardous waste via drain ditches.  PMRF 
[Pacific Missile Range Facility] beach cottages is located 0.84 miles from the new site, PMRF 
housing is located 1.1 miles from the new site.  PMRF airport, which is a FAA certified runway, is 
located 1.0 mile from the new site.  ADC is an agribusiness company and not a landfill company.  
ADC should return the unusable farm lands to the original fish ponds and marshes.  This would 
increase our near shore fisheries, filter sediment during flooding, and be environmentally friendly 
for generations to come.  I hope that ADC shuts down this new landfill site.  Thank you.   
 
Chair thanked Mr. Warren and asked if there were any further questions from the Board or the public.  
There was none.  
 
Chair noted that Russel Tsuji left the meeting at 10:00 A.M. 
 
Mr. Ken Nakamoto noted that Ms. Cruz had her hand up. 
 
Ms. Cruz stated that Ms. Manar wanted to provide testimony. 
 
Ms. Manar said her father was one of the first workers of Kekaha sugar mill and she started working 
there because she really wanted to clean it up. When the Kekaha mill started operating, we operated 
as one community, and it was a wonderful time in our history.  However, over the years, our 
community has really suffered.  I know that we have been trying to restart, not just agriculture but a 
lot of things for our community. If you saw from a bird’s eye view what Ms. Fraley showed, you 
see all the beautiful lands and you see some of the farms that ADC put on the land continue to 
struggle.  Before we even think about using such good land and water for something like trash, 
ADC should consider the original intention of the land.  Kekaha still has a lot of descendants that 
come from farming and the plantation era and are very supportive of food sustainability.  Our 
community was built on farming and ranching.  We were very self-sufficient.  If ADC can support 
our community and see it from our perspective of how we should be using that land, which is why I 
raised my hand to say that meetings are good because our Community has a huge silent majority 
that would like to understand and would like to support the use of the land in ways that Mr. Warren 
has spoken. Yes, we understand there’s pesticide. Yes, we understand a lot of things. However, you 
know, I stand for just the voices of the people of Kekaha who would love to be here, but they’re not 
able to.  And I think ADC should consider all of our voices and all of our needs as well. That’s all I 
have to say. Thank you. 
 
Chair thanked Ms. Manar and the other testifiers and suggested moving on to the next agenda item, 
and called on Mr. Yee, supervisor of the Commerce and Economic Development Division, 
Department of the Attorney General, to talk about the Sunshine Law complaint. 

013



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on November 16, 2023 
Via Zoom Teleconference and/or In-Person at 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 204, Honolulu, HI 96813 
 

10 
 

 
2. Update on Sunshine Law complaint (S APPEAL 24-02) by anonymous complainant dated 

August 21, 2023, and supplemental complaint dated September 22, 2023, regarding the hiring 
of the new executive director 
 
Mr. Yee stated his intention was to go through the Opinion that was submitted by the Office of 
Information Practices (OIP) to opine for you where there is agreement, where there could be 
concerns that ADC could express and why, and then ask you what your preferences are with respect 
to a response to OIP and on what basis.  I would normally do this in executive session, but it is 
certainly your right to have this discussion in open session.  If I could confirm with you whether you 
want to go into executive session or not to discuss the rights, liabilities, duties, and obligations of 
this matter with your attorney. 
 
Chair asked if the Board members would like to go into executive session or have the discussion in 
open session? 
 
Ms. Seddon stated that it seems like it should be an executive session.  Does Mr. Yee have an 
opinion on that? 
 
Mr. Yee stated there’s legal and policy issues involved.  In most cases, I would expect to be in 
executive session.  You should be informed that once we are in open session, there’s no going back.  
You can’t put the toothpaste back in the tube. 
 
Ms. Seddon said so if there’s legal issues, usually we go to executive session.   
 
Mr. Yee concurred and said he certainly will be talking about legal issues. 
 
Ms. Seddon stated she would like to make a motion that we go into executive session. 
 
Chair agreed and said Ms. Seddon has made a motion to go into executive session, may I have a 
second? 
 
Second:  Mr. Okuhama.     
 
Chair asked if there was any public testimony before going into executive session.  There was none. 
 
Chair called for the vote.  Hearing no objection and noting the Mr. Tsuji had left the meeting, the 
motion was approved:  7-0.   
 
Mr. Nakamoto asked for a five minute recess to send out the Teams link for the executive session.   
 
Chair called for a five minute recess.     
 
The Board exited the public meeting at 10:25 A.M. 
 
The Board returned to the public session at 11:20 A.M.  Board members present:  Chair, Mr. Hong, 
Mr. Kishida, Ms. Seddon, Mr. Watts, and Mr. Wicker. 
 

014



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on November 16, 2023 
Via Zoom Teleconference and/or In-Person at 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 204, Honolulu, HI 96813 
 

11 
 

Chair stated that we’re back on public record at 11:20 A.M. and reported pursuant to Act 19 that while 
in executive session the Board received a report from Mr. Yee on his analysis of the November 3rd 
opinion by OIP.  No further action will be taken. 
 
Chair moved on to the rest of the agenda.    
 
Mr. Yee asked if he could be excused as this time. 
 
Chair agreed and thanked Mr. Yee for his presentation. 

 
3. The Diamond Head Seafood presentation was taken out of order following agenda item B-3.  

 
4. Update regarding ADC-owned buildings in Whitmore Village, Oahu, Hawaii 

 
Chair called on Mr. Nakamoto for an update of the ADC owned buildings in Whitmore. 
 
Mr. Nakamoto stated ADC requested follow-up testing from the last findings of hazardous 
materials.  The contractor conducted air and swipe testing in 12 structures, primarily the structures 
where people are working or accessing the buildings.  All of the areas that we tested, the results 
were that they did not exceed OSHA or EPA exposure levels. You received copies of the reports.  
We did notify the tenants.    
 
Chair asked if there were any comments.  There was none. 
 
Chair moved on to item 5 and called on Ms. Gady for the executive director’s report. 

 
5. Executive Director’s Report regarding project updates, budget updates, status of vacant 

positions, and a branding and marketing project 
 

Ms. Gady stated that in the Board packet, you’re going to see the executive directors update.  I’ll 
just highlight a couple of things.  First of all, the $10 million food and product innovation network, 
the funding got cut due to the budget crisis, moved from $10 million down to $500,000, a loss of 
$9,500,000.  This money tentatively could be pushed into next year’s budget. But in the meantime, 
we are looking for additional funding in other locations.  The same thing with completing the plans 
for the Wahiawa wastewater pipeline, that funding has also been reduced to $500,000 and the 
purchase of the $3,000,000 Oahu property was also reduced to $500,000.  The Central Oahu food 
hub was reduced to $500,000.  I think the Board members wanted to take a quick look at the budget, 
which was included in the Board submittal (pages 118-119).  We don’t always have a lot of control 
over what was passed by the legislature, and what programs and projects are going to be assigned to 
ADC.  In the last legislative session a total of $106 million was appropriated, but when it went to 
the governor, there was about $88,800,000 that was line item vetoed.  The governor reduced the 
amount to complete the designs to fully understand the potential cost of the R1 pipeline in Wahiawa 
ditch system.  That’s pushed to next year.  The appropriation dropped from $17.3 million to $3.3 
million, and what we’re starting to see is a shift from general funds, which has kind of been our 
mainstay.  For us as an organization we may have to start leaning into our bonding capability and 
our revenue bonds and so that’s kind of a change moving forward.  Are there any questions on the 
budget that you would like me to go into further detail? 

 
Chair asked if the Board members any questions? 
 

015



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on November 16, 2023 
Via Zoom Teleconference and/or In-Person at 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 204, Honolulu, HI 96813 
 

12 
 

Mr. Okuhama asked yeah, just wanted to ask about the reduction in the $3,000,000 to purchase the 
property.  The seller has been waiting for a while.  I was just curious, I know we wanted to obtain 
that parcel, is it going to happen. 
 
Ms. Gady asked Mr. Takemoto to speak on that.   
 
Mr. Takemoto said that money was being placed into the supplemental budget request and of course 
that’s not a certainty.  We are still working with the seller, going through the due diligence process 
and there are some title issues that may need to be cleared up.  So oddly enough the timing may 
work out quite well.  Right now we’re still proceeding.  We are asking for the money to be 
reappropriated in the supplemental budget for 2025. 
 
Mr. Okuhama thanked Mr. Takemoto and said you know some companies are getting rid of all their 
lands and patience was not really what they want when it comes to selling their parcels.  But if 
there’s title issues, then good we have time. 
 
Ms. Gady continued that with the addition of the Accountant V hired in August, and the Accountant 
IV hired in October, they have been a huge support to the entire organization.  They have been 
helpful not only in working on our current fiscal year, but the new staff is also going back to 
reconcile fiscal year 2023-2024.   In the years prior to 2023, we are working with the consultant 
Spire and going back to reconcile as much information as possible.  But it does provide like a clean 
slate moving forward.  We are asking the consultant if we should go forward on QuickBooks, or do 
they think we should be moving forward on Yardi?  And, in regard to Yardi, we have 90% of the 
information already in the system and our Accountant IV has an incredible working knowledge of 
the software. So that has been a wonderful addition and leaping us forward in some of our goals.  In 
the vacant positions, we are still trying to encumber funds for two positions, the contract manager 
and the water worker.  And I just want to emphasize that the water worker was a safety issue for us 
because we send the teams out in twos to take a look at the ditch.  And currently we have 5 workers 
over 26 miles of ditch. That means each worker is trying to cover 5 miles of ditch.  That’s a pretty 
lean organization. I also wanted to let you know that my weekly reports are available to the public 
on the ADC website.  One of the other things that’s in your board packet is a questionnaire about 
branding and marketing.  The Board originally thought it would be good to come in with some 
samples, like new logos, and then it was suggested to work with the stakeholders in regard to brand 
positioning.  Ideally I’d like to get some feedback in the next 30 days.  The questions are very 
general in terms of what colors you like, what colors you associate us with, what logos that you like 
and it’s not just in the ag space, it’s also in the marketplace as a whole.  I think it goes to the heart of 
what our brand promise is for ADC and positioning and when I think about a couple of examples, I 
think about, you’ve got Mercedes-Benz, you’ve got BMW, and you’ve got Toyota.  They’re all car 
companies.  But when you’re buying a Mercedes, you’re buying luxury; when you’re buying the 
BMW, you’re buying a performance vehicle; and when you’re buying a Toyota, it’s about 
reliability.  So thinking long and hard strategically about what our brand promise is to our current 
stakeholders, to our current customers, to our future customers, we are relying heavily on the input 
from the Board.  The information from the questionnaire is really, really important for us moving 
forward, especially in light of the fact that ADC is turning the big 3 0 in 2024.  We should take a 
hard look at where we’ve been and where we’re headed.  Does anyone have any questions? 
 
Chair called on Ms. Seddon. 
 
Ms. Seddon asked Ms. Gady if she could send out the questionnaire separately so it’s not buried in 
the Board packet? 

016



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on November 16, 2023 
Via Zoom Teleconference and/or In-Person at 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 204, Honolulu, HI 96813 
 

13 
 

 
Ms. Gady replied absolutely, that’s an excellent suggestion.  
 
Chair stated OK, seeing no further questions we appear to be down to five board members.   

 
G. Adjourn 

 
Having no further business before the Board, Chair adjourned the meeting at 11:32 A.M. 
 

Date of Next Meeting:  The next meeting is scheduled for January 18, 2024, at 9 A.M. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
Ingrid P. Hisatake 
Secretary III 

 
 
 

017



UPDATE
PROPOSED NEW 
LANDFILL SITE

Allison Fraley, Environmental Services Manager

County Public Works Dept., Solid Waste Division

ITEM  F-1

018



•   Kaua‘i MSWLF Siting Studies 2001/2002 

•   Mayor’s Advisory Committee on Landfill Site Selection 2009 

•   County of Kaua‘i Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan 2009 

•   Community Criteria Evaluation (CCE) 2012 

•   Kaua‘i Landfill Siting Study Report, July 2012

•   New Kaua‘i Landfill Traffic and Roadways Engineering Feasibility Study (TREFS), April 2014/November 2016

•   Conceptual Design Report, Municipal Solid Waste Landfill and Resource Recovery Park at Ma‘alo, August 2014

•    Alternatives Analysis, Proposed New Kaua‘i Landfill and Resource Recovery Park Ma‘alo 2017

• Final Environmental Impact Statement New Kauai Landfill, Maalo, Island of Kauai, Hawaii, July 2018

• County of Kauai Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan, November 2021

Previous Landfill Siting Studies

019



Current Landfill Capacity

• The County’s sole operating landfill in Kekaha is currently 
approaching capacity. 

• FY 23 accepted 88,000 tons of MSW

• All waste goes to Kekaha – no C&D landfill

• Kekaha Landfill has capacity through June 2027

• Pursuing vertical expansion capacity to April 2030

020



Proposed Site
Site Suitability

• The proposed site is within a ½ mile of the Kekaha-Mauka site

• The proposed site similar to previously studied Kekaha-Mauka 
Site including landfill life

• A Right-of-Entry to perform a preliminary engineering analysis 
was granted by the landowner on April 27, 2023 

021



Preliminary Information

• Location Map

• Preliminary Conceptual Site Grading Plan and Sections

• Information for Pacific Missile Range Facility (PMRF)

• Information for State Department of  Health Solid and Hazardous Waste Branch (DOH)

022



Location Map

023



Preliminary Conceptual Site Grading Plan

024



Coordination with PMRF

Proposed site is:

• Within 10,000 foot distance from the runway, approximately 6,500 feet

• Landfill height will require coordination with PMRF 

• Will provide pertinent site information and request a meeting with PMRF

025



Coordination with DOH
• Over 2 miles from Kekaha Town 

• Located near the UIC Line coordination with DOH will include locating all 
landfilling activities below the UIC Line

• Located in the Mana Plain where groundwater is managed by the Agricultural 
Development Corporation (ADC) ditch system DOH is requesting for 
information on the future long-term maintenance of  the ditch system from the 
ADC

• Will provide pertinent site information and request a meeting with DOH 

026



NEXT STEPS

• Conceptual Design - 2024

• Perform an EIS - 2025

• State Land Use - 2026

• County Zoning - 2027

• Design – 2029

027



MAHALO

ALLISON FRALEY

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES MANAGER
AFRALEY@KAUAI.GOV
(808) 241-4837

028



Project Update November 2023
Fish Meal & Feed Production Plant 
James Campbell Estate 
91-269 Olai Street Kapolei, Hawaii 96707

029



01. Mission
With our expertise in aquaculture feed production, we aim to produce high-
quality feeds that meet the nutritional requirements of various fish species 
and promote their growth and health. Our goal is to build a state-of-the-art 
feed mill equipped with the latest technology and operated by a skilled team 
of professionals committed to delivering consistent and reliable products.

Our 30-plus years of experience in the seafood industry gives us unique 
insights into the needs and challenges of aquaculture operations. We 
understand the importance of quality feeds in achieving optimal production 
and profitability.

02. Vision
Provides a solution for using fish/animal waste as a resource
Keeps money in the state's economy
Creates jobs and boosts the economy
Offers economical prices for a higher protein product
Supports local research and development
Improves productivity
Provides educational opportunities
Reduces feed cost
Reduces food cost
Promotes environmentally conscious practices

030



Who We Are
Diamond Head Seafood is a local owned and operated business that has been operating in 
Hawaii for over 26 years. It has established itself as a leading provider of fresh seafood, 
with a large family of brands supporting the complete Halm’s Enterprise. We currently 
support over 102 grocery stores, 150 restaurants, provide over 185 local jobs, all while 
maintaining a 99% minority employed business. 

Diamond Head Seafood prides itself on sourcing only the highest quality seafood from local 
waters, and has a commitment to sustainability and responsible fishing practices. With a 
loyal customer base and a reputation for excellence, Diamond Head Seafood and its family 
of brands are an integral part of Hawaii's culinary scene.

031



About Our Team

Mike Irish - 

Michael Yonemura

Ryan Murashige 

Troy Antonelis

Dani Chu

CEO of Halm’s Enterprises. Starting with Park’s Brand in 1985, he has grown the family of brands to encompass four companies, twelve plus brands. His leadership and 
dedication to the community have led him to sit as a Board Member for the Rehabilitation Hospital of the Pacific, State of Hawaii Judicial and Executive Salary Commissions, 
Castle Resorts, St. Louis Schools, Honolulu Community Foundation, and more. He brings more than 38 years of experience to the group.

With over 32 years of experience in the seafood industry, Mr. Yonemura has worked in every role, starting from a fish cutter. He understands the significance of 
each job in the seafood processing industry. 2015, he was named President of Diamond Head Seafood and L. Kang, overseeing their DBA businesses. Since then, 
these companies have expanded their product range across the mainland USA, sharing the beloved "local" delicacies with people all over the country.

Ryan Murashige has extensive experience in aquaculture, having worked at various hatcheries and research facilities in Hawaii and North Carolina. He has 
focused on developing hatchery and grow-out technologies for Southern Flounder and Blue Crab and culturing Japanese flounder and Pacific Threadfin. Ryan 

was CEO of Hukilau Foods in Hawaii and started his company, Aquaculture Technologies of the Marshall Islands. He has spent most of his career working in 
aquaculture and conducting research in the field.

In 2002, Troy earned a Master's degree in Public Administration and a Master's certificate in Environmental Planning from the University of Hawaii, Manoa. He 
then worked at the State of Hawaii's Department of Land and Natural Resources, focusing on coral reef ecosystems outreach and education. Troy shifted his 

focus to entrepreneurship in 2005, succeeding in catering and earning a "Fastest 50" small business award in 2012. Recently, Troy joined Diamond Head Seafood 
to pursue new challenges.

Dani has an impressive 15-year track record in media and marketing. She began her career at The University of Kansas Center for Research on Learning under Dr. Don 
Deschler, gaining experience in grant writing and fundraising for special education development. She later transitioned into digital media, app development, and design. Dani 
has worked with multiple seafood companies in the local area, where she helped modernize their processes, setting them up for growth and expansion, bringing local seafood 

nationwide.

032



4/2/2007  Assignment lease, sublease 16 years of expenses 

Annual  Real Property Taxes  $491.91 per year  $7871.56 (16 yrs)  

Ryan Murashige: 
Nine years on retainer  $12,000 per year  $108,000.00 R&D 
Payroll 7/1/22 – 12/31/22 $3,000 per month  $18,000.00 

Rent  12/2008 – 6/2021  $6,900 per year $96,600.00 Total  

Add’l charges lease negotiations increases   $2540.00 

 New Rent 7/2021 – 12/31/22  $9,000  per year  $13,500.00 Total

 Prior investment in Campbell Property    $246,510.56 Total

Pre-Award Investments
It is essential to consider all expenses, including those incurred before the start of a 
project when evaluating the overall cost and benefits. The expenses listed, such as 
real property taxes, retainer fees, and payroll, can contribute to the project's success. 
Additionally, the investment in the Campbell Property shows a commitment to long-
term growth and stability. By accounting for these expenses, we can create a more 
accurate budget and ensure that the project is set up for success from the beginning.

033



Download Full Report Here

Refuse amount impact in dollars
The Western Pacific Regional Fishery Management Council has released its SAFE report for 2022, which includes reported values adjusted to a whole/round weight
basis from auction data, including H&G, G&G, and whole fish. In 2022, the total commercial pelagic fish landings in Hawaii were 29.6 million lbs, with total deep set
(bigeye tuna directed trips) LL fish landings of 24.2 million lbs and total shallow-set (swordfish directed trips) LL fish landings of 1.9 million lbs. Please note that
actual HG and GG plus whole fish require access to UFA data, which reports on a sold basis. This information is important for understanding the current state of
fisheries and seafood industry as a whole in Hawaii and making informed decisions for sustainable management. 

WPRFMC. 2023. Annual Stock Assessment and Fishery Evaluation Report for the Hawaii Archipelago Fishery Ecosystem Plan 2022. T Remington, M Seeley, A Ishizaki (Eds.). Honolulu: Western
Pacific Regional Fishery Management Council.

v4 (9/21/2023) 

034

https://www.wpcouncil.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/Hawaii-FEP-SAFE-Report-2022-Final_v4.pdf


Construction $1.5 Million 12-18 Months

Fish Mill & Other Equipment  $2.5 Million 6-12 Months

Fish Feed Formulation TBD 6-12 Months

Market Testing TBD 12-24 Months

By the end of the year 2023, we aim to have our 300 lbs per hour machine fully operational to increase our output.

By the summer of 2024, we will have our 2000 lbs per hour machine up and running. This will significantly boost our production
capacity, enabling us to undertake larger projects and broaden our customer base.

Our project timeline has been delayed due to unforeseen challenges we've encountered in the process. Here are the updated
timelines:

The original timeline outlined in the RFP has been deferred due to barriers we've experienced in obtaining the necessary permits
and addressing land development challenges. The recent Maui fires and Hawaiian Electric's involvement have forced them to
reassess their priorities. Unfortunately, we're now facing a 70-week wait to receive outstanding reviews and approvals for the
properties needed for electrical enhancements from HECO. These enchancements are for Connecting electricity/water to the
property/sprung structure that exceed the specifications of the Fish Feed Mill with a reasonable buffer for cold storage, prep, etc.
When the proposed system is LIVE/in operation, total plant electrical requirements call for 286 KW/Hr and water at 180 GPH.

See Production Requirements for extensive description of construction needs for property improvements still outstanding. 

Project Summary and Updated Timeline

035



Construction -- $1.5 million/ 12-18 months. The tentative scope of construction includes:

a. Utilities. Connecting electricity/water to the property/sprung structure that exceed the specifications of the Fish Feed Mill with a reasonable buffer for cold storage, prep, etc.When the proposed system is LIVE/in
operation, total plant electrical requirements call for 286 KW/Hr and water at 180 GPH.
b. Gas. There is also a gas requirement if connecting gas lines is possible. If gas is not an option, we have the option to purchase a larger boiler.
c. Wastewater. Designing the process/location of the wastewater. Wastewater would come from the 180 GPH to operate the system. The proposed system at 2,080 hours per year has the capacity of 6,000 tons of fish feed
per year (12 million pounds of fish feed). We are only looking at 10% of this, or 1.2 million pounds of fish feed. Assuming the plant operates at 10-20% of the 2,080 hours, this would be 3,000-6,000 gallons per month. Along
with any other wastewater from the property (restrooms/sanitation/cleaning/etc.). Total wastewater capacity may be up to ~10,000 gallons per month. Steam requirement of the proposed plant is 631,800 BTU. This may not
translate to wastewater since the steam evaporates.
d. Paved Road. Paving a road from the entrance of the property to the sprung structure with a turnaround radius for delivery vehicles. Paving will continue to workshop site, second slab, and around the sprung structure and
through certain parts of the property for the most convenient delivery vehicle egress/ingress.
e. Customer Parking (MAKAI). Design/install 8-12 stalls for onsite customer parking near the office (makai side of sprung structure). If we collaborate with Island Commodities, customers could park in their parking lot and
walk to sprung structure. Note: if we collaborate with Island Commodities, would need a Gate System to be installed to open/close daily connecting both properties.
f. MAUKA Receiving Area/Scale. Design/build a receiving area with bins/scale to weigh in fish waste received. Receiving-related information will be manually entered.
g. Cold Storage. Design/build cold storage adjacent to Receiving Area and in close proximity to the Fish Feed Mill that makes sense logistically (see attachment 2, 3, 4). The cold storage would be ~8,000 SF to store pre -
processed fish waste and any fish waste by-products that require cold storage.
h. MAYBE: Grinder Step. There may be a step to convert fish waste through a grinder andthen to Fish Feed Mill. Designate a physical location for this step to take place.
i. Production Line. Design/install production line that would be used as an area to bag/weigh the finished fish feed product and then place the bags on
pallets. Pallets would be placed on the storage racks that could be transported to a storage area next to the MAKAI Office for customer pick-up.

j. Scale. Commercial grade scale to weigh bagged finished product.
k. Fish Feed Mill Installation. The equipment installation will be performed by the Fish Feed Mill equipment provider; however, there may be additional scope that could be detailed with the General Contractor through
change orders.
I. Stickwater/Fish Oil. Stickwater (water) yield is 30% from the fish waste or about 8,000 gallons per month. Two liquid tanks will collect the stickwater and fish oil, separately, andwould be located somewhere outside
of the sprung structure that makes the most logistical sense for trucks to access and that takes into consideration setback requirements, if any. Both stickwater and fish oil will be byproducts that can be sold separately. The
stickwater can also be used to bind fish pellets so we would need equipment to boil/sanitize the stickwater.
m. Production Line for Fish Oil/Stickwater. Some of the fish oil/ stickwater will be re-claimedfor fish feed production. The remainder would be processed in this area for sale to a secondarymarket. Fish Oil would be poured
into 55-gallon drums, stored, and sold separately. Stickwaterwould be pumped directly from the tank into a truck/tanker and sold separately.
n. PCS/Customer Pick-Up Area. Design an area outside of the office for customer pick-up of bagged fish feed. The area would have a POS system.
o. Storage Racks. Designing/install storage racks for the fish feed manufactured from the Fish Feed Mill. The fish feed/fish meal will not need to go into cold storage because it is a dry feed. The fish feed would go to the
production line to be bagged and stored onto pallets on the storage racks for customer pick  up/delivery. Most of the finished product will be delivered.
p. Office/Restrooms. Design/build restrooms/office space in the BACK of the sprung structure. Approx. 500 SF of office space plus approx. 250 SF of restrooms (men's & women's). Customer pick-up area would either be
outside of the office or it could be a pick-up window that can be accessed from the office.
q. Fan/Cooling System. Design/install fans or some type of cooling system (not HVAC) for workers.
r. Camera System. WiFi enabled camera system throughout building to see interior and exterior of sprung structure.
s. Inventory Management System. Finished product will be tracked manually and entered into a software in the office.

Production Requirements

036



 Shrimp 
Shrimp Improvement Kanpachi 
Ocean Era 
Tilapia  
Kohala Mountain Fish 
Hawaii Fish Company 
Puna Aquafarms 
Kunia Country Farms 
Mari’s Garden 

Potential value of feed used and savings (Usage Numbers) 
The American Animal Feed Industry Association's 2020 report on Feeding Domestic Livestock estimated that aquaculture consumed 613k of animal by-products and waste for feed.
However, post-COVID, the organization has reported processing disruptions in livestock feed products. Our feed project now has a greater opportunity to offer a sustainable, local
solution that helps reduce the negative environmental effects of seafood processing plants.

AFIA. 2020. Animal Feed/Food Consumption and COVID-19 Impact Analysis 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Food & Drug Administration. As of 10/24/2020. FDA BSE/Ruminant Feed Inspections Firms Inventory.

Download Full Report Here

To promote sustainability and self-sufficiency in Hawaii's aquaculture industry, it is important to focus on locally sourced feed ingredients. By doing so, we can reduce our reliance on outside sources
and ensure a more stable and resilient industry. The current chart highlights the need for more locally sourced feed ingredients to be incorporated into the industry. The chart below shows the State
of Hawaii’s aquaculture ingredient consumption by weight.

Below are our anticpated feed used and savings projections:

Approximate 10 Million lbs being imported in to the state at a approximate value of $20 Million dollars

037

http://ifeeder.org/wp-content/uploads/210301-FINAL-REPORT-IFEEDER-Animal-Feed-Food-Consumption-COVID-19.pdf


Location:

James Campbell Industrial Park
91-269 Olai Street Kapolei, Hawaii 96707
Approximately 4 Acres

038



Site Deta i Is 

Address: 

Acres: 

91 269 Olai Street, Kapolei, HI 96707 

Fee Owner: State of Hawaii 

,Lessee: Grove Farm Fish & Poi LLC 

039



040



Overview of Space
01. Fishmeal Plant

Feed Mill Machine

02. Research Tanks

Fish and Shrimp feed trials for palatability and growth

03. Storage: Feeds, Dry Ingredients
Storage of dry ingredients and goods. 

04. Feed Production Plant
Feed produced from the meal.

04. 

03. 

02. 

01.

041



Design Layout

042



043



Fish Feed Production Line

Will be located figure 4 page 13. 

This machine will produce about 300 lbs Per Hour. 

044



Fish Feed Production Line - 300 lbs Per Hour 
Twin Screw Extruder
Mix Feed Ingredients

045



Fish Feed Production Line - 300 lbs Per Hour 
(Left to Right) Conveyor, Dryer, Sprayer: Flavor Additives 

046



Fish Pellets

47%
Crude Protein
Bone Meal 

Current Yearly Imported Feeds to Hawaii:

•KAMPACHI
•SHRIMP
•TILAPIA
•CATFISH

*(10 Million Pounds of feeds: Estimated total statewide)

047



E S T I M A T E D F E E D P R O D U C T I O N

Feed Production: Use IC Meal

• 5,500 lbs per day of meal
• Feed formulation with 80% meal, pellets produced = 6,875 lbs pellet per day

Diamond Head Seafood: Pellet Production Line

• Feed production line output = 300 lbs/hr
• 8 hour feed line operational to produce 2,400 lbs pellet per day

Note: With current output from IC, the following can occur:
1. Operate three of the 300 lbs/hr units with multiply production of feeds.
2. Operate a 2,000 lbs/hr unit, 4 hours a day and produce one type of feed.

048



Cutting Room Waste
150,000 lbs Average Fish Waste Per Month

Diamond Head Seafood

Location For Receiving & Processing Waste 
Fish, Animal, Other By-Products & Waste Processing Area
Capacity 6-10 Tons Per Day 

049



050



Fish Feed
production line

Produces about 2000 lbs Per Hour. Will be located figure 4 page 13. 

051



052



A V A I LA B L E F I S H M E A L / F I S H W A S T E

Diamond Head Seafood (DHS)

• Monthly Waste 150,000 lbs fish waste per month

• 20% conversion from fish waste to meal = 24,000 lbs fishmeal per month

Island Commodities (IC)

• Meal production: 5,000 – 8,000 lbs per day, average = 6500 lbs per day

• 85% of the meal reserved for DHS = 5,500 lbs meal per day

• 27,500 lbs per week, 110,000 lbs per month

25 053



F I S H M E A L / F I S H W A S T E R E Q U I R E M E N T S

/

FEED FORMULATION (47% crude protein)
Fishmeal, Cassava Flour and vitamin/mineral pre-mix

• Amount of fishmeal required
-300 pounds pellets requires 255 pound of fishmeal

• 255 lbs. fishmeal/hr. x 8 hrs./day x 5 days/week x 4 weeks/month
= 40,800 lbs of fishmeal per month

054



Aquired Permits for Campbell Project

•Aquaculture Facility License – DAR

•Aquaculture Dealers License – DAR

•Import Permit (Plant Quarantine) DOA Marine Shrimp, L. vannamei

•Licensing and Permitting DOA

055



JOSH GREEN, M.D. 
GOVERNOR 

 

SYLVIA LUKE 
LT. GOVERNOR 

 

WENDY GADY 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

 

   

S T A T E  O F  H A W A I ‘ I  

AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
HUI HO'OULU AINA MAHIAI 

 

State Office Tower • 235 South Beretania Street, Suite 205 • Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813 
 (808) 586-0186 • www.dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc  

E-2 

FEBRUARY 15, 2024 

 
Subject: Request for approval to execute and enter into a memorandum of understanding 

between ADC, Hawaii Technology Development Corporation, Natural Energy 

Laboratory of Hawaii Authority, and Hawaii Department of Agriculture to 

encourage, support, and facilitate planning and research related activities 

Applicant:  Agribusiness Development Corporation (ADC) 

Authority:  163D-4(a)(5),(15) Hawaii Revised Statutes 

 

BACKGROUND: 

About the Hawaii Technology Development Corporation 

HTDC is a dynamic state agency responsible for diversifying Hawaii's economy and developing a 

flourishing technology industry that provides quality, high-paying jobs for Hawaii residents. HTDC aims 

to accelerate the growth of Hawaii's technology industry by providing capital, building infrastructure and 

developing talent to foster innovation. HTDC is attached to the Department of Business, Economic 

Development and Tourism (DBEDT). Created in 1983, the Hawaii Technology Development 

Corporation, is the state’s economic development agency focused on developing the technology 

sector. Since its inception, technology has evolved and permeates facets of all industries. HTDC 

continues to innovate and create programs relevant to meet the changing technology industry. In addition 

to providing incubation facilities to foster the growth of technology startups, HTDC has grant programs, 

educational and networking programs, statewide mentoring and technology workforce development. 

About Natural Energy Laboratory of Hawaii Authority 

NELHA administers the world’s premier energy and ocean technology park. This unique master‐

permitted park is located on 870 acres of prime coastal property in Kailua‐Kona Hawaii and offers 

research support facilities for the development of renewable energy and other demonstration projects that 

utilize the unique resources found at the park.  It is the world’s only facility that continually brings ashore 

high quality, pristine supplies of both warm surface and cold deep seawater 24 hours a day which allows 

for various tests to take place with views to reap economic potentials from the dual temperature seawater 

delivery system and high solar insolation.  Tenants located in HOST Park work at the pre‐commercial, 

commercial, research and educational levels.  It is the largest diversified economic development project in 

the State and is solely focused on developing green economic projects. 

About Hawaii Department of Agriculture 

The Hawaii Department of Agriculture’s (HDOA) 268 employees statewide work to support, enhance, 

promote, and protect Hawaii’s agriculture and aquaculture industries. We work to create and maximize 

056



Request for approval to refer License Agreement No. LI-GA1713 issued to Touan Farm LLC for 25.191 tillable 

acres at Wahiawa, Oahu, Hawaii, TMK (1) 7-1-012:001 (por.), to the Department of the Attorney General for 

enforcement action 

February 15, 2024 

 

State Office Tower • 235 South Beretania Street, Suite 205 • Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813 
 (808) 586-0186 • www.dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc 

opportunities for exporting; and facilitate growth of existing and new agricultural commodities and value-

added products. In addition, the department works to prevent the introduction and establishment of plants, 

animals and diseases that are detrimental to the state’s agriculture industry and the environment. 

REQUEST: 

Staff requests that the Board authorize staff to execute the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

(Exhibit “A”) between ADC, Hawaii Technology Development Corporation (HTDC), Natural Energy 

Laboratory of Hawaii Authority (NELHA), and the Hawaii Department of Agriculture (HDOA). 

(Request).  

OPERATIONAL PLAN: 

ADC anticipates the proposed MOU facilitating increased cooperation and collaboration between HTDC, 

NELHA, and DOA to further the missions of the respective agencies (for details, see Exhibit “A”).  

CONSERVATION PLAN: 

N/A 

CHAPTER 343: 

N/A 

DISCUSSION: 

ADC is actively working to develop working relationships with other state agencies to broaden 

collaborative efforts to advance state-level and agency-level priorities. A partnership with and between 

HTDC, NELHA, and DOA will allow ADC to further explore the agency’s interest in aquaculture 

development. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Based on the foregoing, staff recommends that the Board approve the Request noted above. 

       
Respectfully Submitted, 

 

LYLE ROE 

Asset Manager 

 

 

Approved for Submission: 

 

 

Wendy Gady 

Executive Director 

 

 

057

Lyle Roe

https://stateofhawaii.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAARvFVQmhaqD72mAl5nDcJMKHI25UpTxUV
https://stateofhawaii.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAARvFVQmhaqD72mAl5nDcJMKHI25UpTxUV


1 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
between 

Agribusiness Development Corporation 
and 

Hawaii Technology Development Corporation 
and 

Natural Energy Laboratory of Hawaii Authority 
and 

Hawaii Department of Agriculture 

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into by and between the Agribusiness 

Development Corporation (“ADC”), an instrumentality and agency of the State of Hawai‘i whose 

business address is 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 205, Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813, the Hawai‘i 

Technology Development Corporation (“HTDC”), an instrumentality and agency of the State of 

Hawai‘i whose business address is 521 Ala Moana Blvd., Suite 255, Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813, the 

Natural Energy Laboratory of Hawaii Authority (“NELHA”), an instrumentality and agency of the 

State of Hawai‘i whose business address is 73-4460 Queen Ka‘ahumanu Hwy., #101, Kailua-

Kona, Hawai‘i 96740, and the Hawaii Department of Agriculture (HDOA), a department within 

the State of Hawai`i whose business address is 1428 South King Street, Honolulu, Hawai`i 

96814.  ADC, HTDC, NELHA and HDOA may be referred to herein individually as a “Party” and 

collectively as the “Parties”. 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to further develop and grow the aquaculture industry in 
Hawai‘i; 

WHEREAS, aquaculture was the fastest growing food production sector in the world,  
growing 6.2% annually between 2000 and 2012 (9.5% between 1990 and 2000) and continues 
to show significant potential; 

WHEREAS, improved coordination and increased collaboration between the Parties will 
assist in the economic growth of aquaculture.  Detailed identification of new opportunities will 
lay the foundation for strong and equitable economic development and may provide an 
alternative source of revenue to the State; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to chapter 163D, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS), ADC’s purpose is 
to create a vehicle and process to make optimal use of agricultural assets for the economic, 
environmental, and social benefit of the people of Hawai‘i; 

WHEREAS, ADC’s charter establishes a public corporation to administer an aggressive 
and dynamic agribusiness development program; 

WHEREAS, ADC’s statutory mission is to support the production of local agricultural 

EXHIBIT A

058



 2 

products for local consumption, develop commercial exports of locally products; 
 
WHEREAS, ADC’s purpose is to coordinate and administer programs to assist agricultural 

enterprises to facilitate the transition of agricultural infrastructure from plantation operations 
into other agricultural enterprises, increase local production of agricultural products for local 
consumption, reduce the State’s reliance on imported agricultural products, and increase 
access to farmland and related infrastructure for small local farmers and cooperatives; 

 
WHEREAS, ADC’s statutory powers include the power to acquire or contract to acquire 

by grant or purchase any real, personal or mixed property infrastructure or accessory facilities 
in connection with any project, and water facilities for conveying distributing and transmitting 
water for irrigation and agricultural uses; 

 
WHEREAS, ADC’s statutory powers include providing advisory, consultative, training and 

educational services, technical assistance and advice to any person, partnership, or corporation, 
either public or private, in order to carry out the purposes of HRS chapter 163D, and to engage 
the services of consultants on a contractual basis for rending professional advice; 

 
WHEREAS, ADC’s statutory powers include the ability to initiate and coordinate business 

and agricultural development plans for its projects, enter into cooperative agreements, 
organize a subsidiary corporation, acquire the assets of a private or other corporation, and 
develop a project to identify necessary project facilities; 

 
WHEREAS, ADC’s statutory powers include issuance of bonds to provide funds to 

finance project facilities and with the governor’s approval may issue revenue bonds;  
 

 WHEREAS, ADC’s current licensees include both agriculture and aquaculture 
agribusinesses.  The sharing of best management practices, innovation and technology grants, 
and access to current research and development, present opportunities for scaling agriculture 
production within the State; 

 
WHEREAS, NELHA and HTDC partnered to support the establishment of the HATCH 

aquaculture accelerator program at NELHA and has provided venture capital for a follow-on 
fund; 

 
WHEREAS, several recipients of HTDC’s Hawai‘i Small Business Innovation Research 

(HSBIR) matching grants that were conducting aquaculture research at NELHA have transitioned 
their research into commercially viable products; 

 
WHEREAS, NELHA and HTDC were two of the lead agencies that partnered in 2021 to 

submit a proposal targeting the Ocean Economy Growth Cluster in response to the Economic 
Development Administration’s Build Back Better Challenge Grant Opportunity.  Although the 
proposal was not awarded funding, it highlighted joint potential project opportunities and 
common interests; 

059



 3 

 
WHEREAS, HRS section 206M-2(a)(7) directs HTDC to coordinate with other State 

agencies and entities to support the innovation and technology industry as it relates to growing 
the aquaculture sector; 

 
WHEREAS, NELHA’s purpose as detailed in HRS chapter 227D, which is to facilitate 

research, development, and commercialization of natural energy resources and ocean-related 
research, technology, and industry in Hawai‘i and to engage in retail, commercial, or tourism 
activities that will financially support that research, development, and commercialization at a 
research and technology park in Hawai‘i; 

 
WHEREAS, NELHA’s HOST Park, located on 870 acres of land and including 4.4 square 

miles of ocean research corridor is the largest single green economic development project in 

the world.  Its focus is on the uses of deep and surface ocean water for renewable energy 

research, aquaculture and other areas, as well as on sustainable uses of natural energy sources 

such as solar energy; 

 

WHEREAS, NELHA has developed world-class aquaculture infrastructure that has been 

put in place at HOST Park. The State has invested over $120 million since 1974 to create HOST 

Park, a unique outdoor demonstration site for ocean-based technologies. Three sets of 

pipelines deliver deep sea water from up to 3,000 ft. depth as well as pristine sea surface 

water; 

 

WHEREAS, NELHA also serves as a business incubator, research facility, and economic 

development agency.  It offers the opportunity for businesses and organizations using sea 

water, sunshine, and ingenuity to perform research, engage in conservation and education 

activities, workforce development, and produce sustainable commercial products from 

aquaculture; 

 

WHEREAS, NELHA provides proof-of-concept (POC) and commercialization services to 

start-ups in Hawaii’s Aquaculture cluster through the management of a contract for the 

operation of one of the only aquaculture accelerator’s worldwide and has a limited partnership 

agreement for one $10 million follow-on venture investment funds and access to one additional 

follow-on venture fund of $10 million managed by its same contractor for successful business 

coming out of the aquaculture accelerator.  These efforts have demonstrated the State’s 

commitment to developing Hawai‘i’s commercial aquaculture industry and focus entrepreneur 

and investor interest on Hawai‘i as a location for globally relevant aquaculture companies; and 

 

WHEREAS, HOST Park is essentially a POC or outdoor demonstration site for universities, 

businesses and individuals that have completed their work in the laboratory and are entering 

the next phase in their growth, which is to scale up their aquaculture technology outside the 

laboratory in real world conditions.  In this regard, HOST Park plays a key role as a site for these 

060



 4 

demonstrations and allowing start up aquaculture business before graduating to other sites 

around the State, including sites being developed by ADC. 

 

WHEREAS, HRS section 141-52 establishes within the Hawaii Department of Agriculture 

a program to promote and support the aquaculture industry. The program shall act as an 

information clearinghouse for aquaculture activities, coordinate development projects to 

investigate and solve biological and technical problems, actively seek federal funding, and 

develop and expand the aquaculture industry. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereby memorialize their intention to collaborate on 

efforts to grow the aquaculture sector of Hawaii’s economy as described below. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW. 
 
Purpose.  This MOU documents the intended relationship between Parties to encourage, 
support, and facilitate planning, implementation, research related activities between the 
Parties in this MOU.  Each Party may contribute to this effort through appropriate means 
including, but not limited to, cash or in-kind support, program and project coordination, 
information sharing of other relevant expertise, and program and project management of 
implementation elements defined in this MOU. 
 
Policy.  The general policy, areas of cooperation, and joint activities are planned by ADC, HTDC 
and NELHA.  All work done or actions taken are consistent with the mission of each Party to 
support identification of opportunities to grow the aquaculture sector in Hawai‘i. 
 
Non-Binding.  This MOU does not create a binding agreement and is not enforceable in a court 
of law as a contract.  This MOU shall not be used to obligate or commit funds, or as the basis for 
the transfer of funds.  This MOU does not commit any Party to take any actions.  The actions of 
each Party are independent of the actions of the other Party.  The Parties anticipate their 
activities under this MOU will lead to agreements to perform and pay for certain tasks, the 
details of which will be memorialized in final binding agreement(s), if any. 
 
The Parties intend to:  1) cooperate and share resources to identify growth opportunities; 2) 
provide experts and resources as needed to complete this work; 3) provide the information 
gathered for the betterment of others; and, 4) provide the following additional resources to 
implement this project. 
 
MANAGEMENT AND PROGRAM GUIDELINES. 
 

Scope of Collaboration.  The Parties shall leverage their assets, to support the overlap in 
mission, including but not limited to the following: 

 
1. Sharing best practices, templates, and collateral; 

061



 5 

2. Cost-sharing in activities and contracts that are mutually beneficial; 

3. Pursuing federal grant opportunities as they arise; 

4. Promoting each other’s programs and events, whenever appropriate, through 
newsletters, email marketing, and social media platforms; 

5. Exploring new aquaculture opportunities; 
6. Create an efficient agribusiness industry. 

7. Surveying and reporting on shared companies served; and 

8. Meeting quarterly, or as deemed appropriate, to identify and plan new joint venture 
partnership opportunities. 

 
ADC intends to provide: 
 

1. Identification and collaboration opportunities within current licensees, lands and 
identified future licensees and lands; 

2. Access to data collected from licensees regarding current production and needs for 
equipment, expertise, and funding for future scale of their production needs; 

3. Information collected regarding the logistics for inter-island and export of goods and 
services; 

4. Business development expertise specific to agricultural and value-added agricultural 
production in Hawai‘i; 

5. Identification and collaboration on energy projects for creating business efficiencies for 
land holdings and licensees; and 

6. Identification and collaboration regarding current and future needs of Food & Product 
Innovation Network clients. 

 
HTDC intends to provide: 
 

1. Provide expertise on managing and coordinating technology a local Hawaii accelerator 
programs; 

2. Access to the Department of Commerce – National Institute of Standard and 
Technology – Manufacturing Extension Partnership Program National Network 
Resource (NIST MEP); 

3. Partnership with Statewide Economic Development Partnership network; and 
4. Sharing of Hawaii SBIR PROGRAM best practices on working with technology 

companies in Hawaii. 
 
NELHA intends to provide: 
 

1. Technical expertise to ADC in the development of requests for proposals, solicitations, 
etc. for aquaculture projects; 

2. Access to data collected at NELHA through its SCADA system; 
3. Access to laboratory facilities and water quality laboratory; 
4. Business development expertise specific to aquaculture in Hawai‘i; 
5. Grant ADC access to system performance data;  

062



 6 

6. Monitoring, analyzing and sharing the aggregate and non-proprietary operation and 
performance data of aquaculture businesses at HOST Park; and 

7. Participating in education and outreach and workforce development for the aquaculture 
sector. 

 
HDOA intends to provide: 

1. Expertise and veterinary services; 
2. Administer permit framework for the importation of existing and new species relevant 

to aquaculture; 
3. Identification and collaboration of Research and Development land assets; 
4. Identification and collaboration of production land assets; 
5. Economic analysis of the industry. 

 
Management Arrangements. This MOU envisions direct communication between ADC, HTDC, 
and NELHA officials involved in managing the information to be exchanged. 

 
1. This MOU is intended to broadly state the basic understandings of the Parties of the 

tasks described herein. 
 

2. This MOU in no way restricts either of the Parties from participating in any activity with 
other public or private agencies, organizations, or individuals. 

 
3. This MOU is neither a fiscal nor a funds obligation document. Nothing in this MOU 

authorizes or is intended to obligate the Parties to expend, exchange, or reimburse 
funds, services, or supplies, or transfer or receive anything of value. 

 
4. This MOU is strictly for internal management purposes for each of the Parties.  It is not 

legally enforceable and shall not be construed to create any legal obligation on the part 
of any Party.  This MOU shall not be construed to provide a private right or cause of 
action for or by any person or entity. 

 
5. Nothing herein is intended to create a common-law "partnership" with joint and several 

liabilities of any Party for the acts or omissions of any other Party/Parties. 
 
ADMINISTRATION. 
 
Patent and Technical Data.  Parties shall retain exclusive right, title, and interest to their 
individual underlying technologies if any.  No Party warrants that any information or technology 
disclosed to the other Party shall be merchantable or fit for a particular purpose or free of 
claims of infringement from third parties. 
 
Release of Information.  Production or release to news media, to the general public, or any 
third party regarding the existence, nature, or purposes of this MOU shall require mutual 
written agreement of all Parties prior to its release; subject to any requirements of the 

063



 7 

Freedom of Information Act and the Uniform Information Practices Act, as applicable. 
 
IMPLEMENTING AGREEMENTS. 
 
The details of the levels of support to be furnished to one organization by the other(s) with 
respect to funding will be developed in specific implementing agreements subject to availability 
of funds. 
 
Agreements or project plans that set forth specific arrangements for program implementation 
shall be separately developed and agreed to in implementing agreements facilitated by this 
MOU.  Specific funding and tasking will be established under such implementing agreements. 
 
Appropriate patent and other intellectual property provisions shall be included in implementing 
agreements entered into by the Parties. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS. 
 

1. The terms of this MOU shall be governed by the laws of the State of Hawai‘i. 
 

2. A Party may not transfer or assign its role in this MOU without the previous written 
consent of all other Parties.  Any such attempt to transfer or assign shall be null and 
void. 

 
3. This MOU is intended to document the intended relationship between the Parties 

without creating legally enforceable obligations upon the Parties.  All actions 
documented in this MOU are subject to available funding, and no liability shall be 
imposed upon a Party for failure to undertake any activity documented. 

 
4. This MOU be effective upon the signatures of all Parties and shall remain in full force 

and effect for a period of five (5) years from the date of the MOU.  Any Party may 
withdraw from this MOU in its sole discretion upon thirty (30) days written notice to the 
other Parties. 

 
5. Nothing in this MOU shall be deemed to constitute any Party hereto as partner, agent or 

representative of the other Parties or to create any fiduciary relationship between the 
Parties. 

 
6. Each Party shall be responsible for damages or injury that may be caused by its 

respective agents and representatives within the scope of their employment and 
performance under this MOU, to the extent that the liability for such damage or injury 
has been determined by a court or otherwise agreed to by the Parties, and the 
responsible party shall pay for such damage and injury to the extent permitted by law.  
Claims for damage of any nature whatsoever shall be limited to direct damages only. 

 

064



 8 

7. This MOU may be executed, and signatures transmitted electronically or by facsimile.  
This MOU may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 
and all of which shall together constitute one and the same instrument notwithstanding 
that all of the Parties are not signatories to the same counterparts.  For all purposes, 
duplicate unexecuted and unacknowledged pages of the counterparts may be discarded 
and the remaining pages assembled as one document. 

 
 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank; signature page follows.] 

 
 
  

065



 9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned being duly authorized by the respective agencies have 

signed this Memorandum of Understanding. 

 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 
 
By:          
Name:   Wendy L. Gady    
Its:    Executive Director    
Date:         
 
 
HAWAII TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 
 
By:          
Name:         
Its:          
Date:         
 
 
NATURAL ENERGY LABORATORY OF HAWAII AUTHORITY 
 
 
By:          
Name:  Gregory Paul Barbour     
Its:   Executive Director     
Date:         
 
 
 
HAWAII DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
 
 
By:          
Name:  Sharon Hurd      
Its:   Chairperson      
Date:         
 
 
January 18, 2024 

066



JOSH GREEN, M.D. 
GOVERNOR 

 

SYLVIA LUKE 
LT. GOVERNOR 

 

WENDY GADY 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

   

S T A T E  O F  H A W A I ‘ I  

AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
HUI HO'OULU AINA MAHIAI 

 

State Office Tower • 235 South Beretania Street, Suite 205 • Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813 
 (808) 586-0186 • www.dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc  

E-3 

FEBRUARY 15, 2024 

 

Subject: Request to authorize the Board to delegate authority to the Executive 

Director to execute non-extraordinary rights-of-entry without Board 

approval 

 

Applicant:  Agribusiness Development Corporation (ADC) 

 

Authority:  Section 163D-3(g), Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS) 

 

 
 

BACKGROUND: 

On June 25, 2014, the ADC Board of Directors (Board) approved the Corporate Resolution 

Authorizing the Executive Director to Grant Non-Extraordinary Rights of Entry (Delegation). 

(Exhibit “A”). The purpose of the Delegation was to authorize the Executive Director to grant 

non-extraordinary rights-of-entry for such things as third-party access to ADC land, assets, and 

utilities for repair and maintenance, survey work on adjacent properties, survey and due 

diligence work by contractors for upcoming projects, approved tenants who do not yet have a 

lease or license for the purpose of farm and conservation planning, etc. The rights of entry 

formalize a process for third-party access to ADC lands in order to, in part, indemnify ADC, and 

require general commercial liability insurance as a requirement of that access, and is explicit that 

absolutely no property interest is conveyed by the right of entry.  

Staff notes that other rights of entry that might be termed extraordinary rights of entry such as a 

local school or community group using ADC property for temporary events or parking, or long-

term project planning for significant future projects would still be brought to the Board for 

approval. 

REQUEST: 

Staff requests that the Board authorize the delegation of authority to the Executive Director to 

execute non-extraordinary rights-of-entry without Board approval (Exhibit “B”) (Request). 

WATER NEEDS AND SOURCE OF WATER: 

N/A 

 

OPERATIONAL PLAN: 

N/A 

 

067



Request to re-authorize the Board’s delegation of authority to the Executive Director to execute non-extraordinary 

rights-of-entry without Board approval  

February 15, 2024 

State Office Tower • 235 South Beretania Street, Suite 205 • Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813 
 (808) 586-0186 • www.dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc 

CONSERVATION PLAN: 

N/A 

 

CHAPTER 343: 

N/A 

 

DISCUSSION: 

Pursuant to section 163D-3(g), HRS (Supp. 2022), the Board is required the to document specific 

delegations of authority to the executive director1. The Delegation currently in place was 

approved nearly ten years ago.  The Board has since hired a new executive director.  In 

accordance with section 163D-3(g), HRS, which became effective July 1, 2022, staff believes 

that it is necessary and appropriate for the Board to consider and authorize the delegation of 

authority to the Executive Director to execute non-extraordinary rights-of-entry without further 

notice to or approval by the Board.  This delegation of authority shall expire in four-years, with 

the option to extend for additional four-year periods, or until such time the delegation of 

authority is amended, revoked or rescinded.   

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Based on the foregoing, staff recommends that the Board approve the request. 

 

       

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

LYLE ROE 

Asset Manager 

 

 

 

Approved for Submittal: 

 

 

Wendy Gady  

Executive Director 

 

 
1 163D-4(g), HRS states: “The board shall document the specific authority delegated to the executive director, 
including but not limited to the types of access and use of corporation property that the executive director may 
approve without notice to or approval by the board, and the rent credits and other amendments to board-
approved contract terms that the executive director may approve without notice to or approval by the board.” 

068

Lyle Roe

https://stateofhawaii.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAARvFVQmhaqD72mAl5nDcJMKHI25UpTxUV
https://stateofhawaii.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAARvFVQmhaqD72mAl5nDcJMKHI25UpTxUV


EXHIBIT A

069



1 

BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2024-1
A RESOLUTION TO DELEGATE AUTHORITY TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO 

GRANT NON-EXTRAORDINARY RIGHTS OF ENTRY 

The Board of the Agribusiness Development Corporation 

hereby resolves: 

WHEREAS, the State of Hawai‘i, through its Agribusiness 

Development Corporation (ADC), owns and otherwise manages tens 

of thousands of acres of agricultural and commercial real 

property throughout the State of Hawai‘i; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of ADC (Board) routinely 

considers new projects and project facilities, and determines 

whether, and to what extent, ADC will undertake, assist, or co-

venture in such projects and project facilities; and  

WHEREAS, due diligence in preparation and implementation of 

these ADC projects and project facilities often require physical 

entry onto ADC lands by both the public and private sector 

entities and others involved in these projects and project 

facilities; and  

WHEREAS, once a project or project facility has been 

approved by the Board, the executive director should have the 

power to implement and facilitate the development, due 

diligence, monitoring, and operation of the project or project 

facility; and  

EXHIBIT B

070



2 

 

WHEREAS, the Board approved that certain “Corporate 

Resolution Authorizing the Executive Director to Grant Non-

Extraordinary Rights of Entry” at their meeting on June 25, 

2014, which was executed on August 27, 2014; and  

WHEREAS, effective July 1, 2022, section 163D-3, Hawai‘i 

Revised Statutes was amended, in part, to require the Board to 

document the specific authority delegated to the executive 

director1; and  

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to update and affirm its 

delegation of authority to the executive director to grant non-

extraordinary rights of entry;  

NOW THEREFOR BE IT RESOLVED, that effective February 15, 2024 

(Effective Date), and for a period of four years from the Effective 

Date, the Board delegates to its executive director the authority to 

grant non-extraordinary rights of entry onto ADC property when 

reasonable and necessary to effectuate the projects, project 

facilities, including but not limited to, leases, licenses, revocable 

permits, utility access, asset operation, and other appropriate 

activities.  This delegation of authority shall expire on February 

14, 2028, with the option for the Board to extend for additional 

four-year periods, or until such time the delegation of 

authority is amended, revoked or rescinded by the Board.   

  

071



3 

 

The undersigned, Warren Watanabe, certifies that he is the 

duly elected Chairperson of the Board of Directors of the 

Agribusiness Development Corporation, and that the above 

resolution was duly adopted and made effective at a meeting of 

the Board, convened and held in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Hawai‘i and the Agribusiness Development Corporation 

Bylaws, on February 15, 2024, such resolution is now in full 

force and effect as of the Effective Date, until such time as 

the Board may amend, extend, revoke or rescind this resolution.  

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have affixed my signature as 

Chairperson of the Board of Directors of the Agribusiness 

Development Corporation.  

 

By ____________________ 

 WARREN WATANABE 

Its Board Chairperson 

 

Date ____________________ 

 

 

072



JOSH GREEN, M.D. 
GOVERNOR 

 

SYLVIA LUKE 
LT. GOVERNOR 

 

WENDY GADY 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

   

S T A T E  O F  H A W A I ‘ I  

AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
HUI HO'OULU AINA MAHIAI 

 

State Office Tower • 235 South Beretania Street, Suite 205 • Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813 
 (808) 586-0186 • www.dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc  

E-9 

FEBRUARY 15, 2024 

 

Subject: Discussion and action on letter from Senator Donovan Dela Cruz asking 

the ADC Board to waive attorney-client privilege with regards to the 

August 8, 2023 executive session minutes relating to candidate interviews, 

discussion of executive director salary, and board selection of executive 

director 

 

Applicant:  Agribusiness Development Corporation (ADC) 

 

Authority:  Sections 163D-3(a), 92-5(a)(2) & (4), 92F-13, and 92F-14, Hawaii  

Revised Statutes 

 

 
 
BACKGROUND:  On November 3, 2023, the Office of Information Practices (OIP) issued its opinion in 

response to S APPEAL 24-02, where an anonymous individual asked OIP to determine if the ADC Board 

of Directors violated the Sunshine Law during its selection of the new executive director on August 8, 

2023.  (See November 16, 2023 ADC Board Agenda and submittal F-2, pages 051-086, for a copy of OIP 

Opinion No. F24-03, available at https://dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc/files/2023/11/23_11_16-ADC-Board-

Meeting-Submittals-signed.pdf.)  After review of the executive session minutes OIP found that “the 

discussion on how to inform the public that the selected candidate had accepted the employment offer was 

not authorized to be held in executive session and should instead have been done during the public 

session.”  See OIP Op. Ltr. No. F24-03 at page 24.  OIP further found that “the discussion of the salary 

amount was not so intertwined with the discussion of the two candidates, their qualifications, or their 

salary requirements as to justify a vote in executive session on the salary to be offered to an unidentified 

candidate.”  See OIP Op. Ltr. No. F24-03 at page 25.  OIP noted that the Board could have voted on the 

salary amount in public without frustrating the executive session purpose of protecting candidates’ 

privacy interests.  See OIP Op. Ltr. No. F24-03 at page 25-26.  

In regard to the candidate interviews, OIP found “that their status as applicants for government 

employment was a matter affecting privacy. . . . [and] that their respective interviews revealed not just 

their identities but additional information about their backgrounds and qualifications in which, as 

applicants, they had a privacy interest of the sort recognized under section 92-5(a)(2), HRS.”  See OIP 

Op. Ltr. No. F24-03 at page 23. 

Likewise, Board discussions regarding the hiring of an employee also involved a privacy interest subject 

to HRS section 92-5(a)(2), which OIP referred to as the “‘personnel-privacy exception’ to the Sunshine 

Law’s public meeting requirements” and noted that HRS section 92-5(a)(2) “explicitly allows executive 

discussions regarding the ‘hire’ of an employee.”  See OIP Op. Ltr. No. F24-03 at page 22-23.  OIP 

073

https://dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc/files/2023/11/23_11_16-ADC-Board-Meeting-Submittals-signed.pdf
https://dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc/files/2023/11/23_11_16-ADC-Board-Meeting-Submittals-signed.pdf


Discussion and action on letter from Senator Donovan Dela Cruz asking the ADC Board to waive attorney-client 

privilege with regards to the August 8, 2023 executive session minutes relating to candidate interviews, discussion 

of executive director salary, and board selection of executive director 

February 15, 2024 

 

State Office Tower • 235 South Beretania Street, Suite 205 • Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813 
 (808) 586-0186 • www.dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc 

concluded that “because the candidates’ status as applicants for government employment was a matter 

affecting privacy, and the candidates remained applicants until such time as the successful candidate 

accepted the Board’s offer, the Board could not have publicly voted on the question of hiring a specific 

candidate without revealing that candidate’s identity and thus frustrating the purpose of the executive 

session.  OIP therefore concludes that the Board’s interviews of and discussions about the two candidates 

in executive session, including salary discussions, were proper.”  See OIP Op. Ltr. No. F24-03 at page 23.   

ADC had the option of requesting reconsideration of the November 3, 2023 OIP Opinion.  See OIP Op. 

Ltr. No. F24-03 at page 36.  At the ADC Board meeting held on November 16, 2023, it was decided that 

ADC would make no further response to OIP regarding OIP Op. Ltr. No. F24-03.        

On November 17, 2023, Senator Donovan M. Dela Cruz (Senator Dela Cruz) sent a letter to Chair 

Watanabe requesting “a complete and unredacted copy of the minutes of the ADC Board’s executive 

meeting on August 8, 2023 for the purpose of discussing Agenda Items D.1, D.2 and D.3 relating to 

Executive Director candidate interviews, discussion of Executive Director salary, and board selection of 

Executive Director.”   

Based on OIP’s opinion that the August 8, 2023 discussions regarding salary and the public notification 

method should have been conducted during the public session, the executive session minutes regarding 

salary and the public notification method were provided to Senator Dela Cruz on November 21, 2023.  

Based on OIP’s opinion that the August 8, 2023 interviews and candidate discussions were properly held 

in executive session, information regarding the candidate interviews and selection of the new executive 

director were redacted and not disclosed.  Board discussions covered by section 92-5(a)(4), HRS were 

also redacted and not disclosed.    

In his November 17, 2023 letter, Senator Dela Cruz also requested that the Board waive its attorney-client 

privilege “with regard to any records responsive to this request as has been determined to be permissible 

pursuant to OIP Op. Ltr. No. 91-23.”  Senator Dela Cruz was informed that his request would be 

presented to the Board at its next meeting, which was eventually scheduled for January 18, 2024. 

On January 14, 2024, after receipt of the redacted August 8, 2023 minutes, Senator Dela Cruz filed a 

complaint with OIP arguing that the redactions were inappropriate.  On January 16, 2024, OIP notified 

Chair Watanabe that a Notice of Appeal from Denial of Access to General Records (U APPEAL 24-25) 

was filed and gave ADC until January 30, 2024 to file a response.  Based on the filing of U APPEAL 24-

25, the only outstanding issue in regard to Senator Dela Cruz’s November 17, 2023 letter request for 

government records is the issue of attorney-client privilege. 

ADC filed its response to U APPEAL 24-25 on January 30, 2024.  A copy of the response, along with 

Exhibits A to H, are attached to this submittal.  

At the January 18, 2024 Board meeting the motion to waive attorney-client privilege failed to garner 

sufficient votes to allow the Board to take action.         

REQUEST: 

Senator Dela Cruz requests that the Board waive its attorney-client privilege in regard to the August 8, 

2023 candidate interviews and selection of the new executive director.   

  

074



Discussion and action on letter from Senator Donovan Dela Cruz asking the ADC Board to waive attorney-client 

privilege with regards to the August 8, 2023 executive session minutes relating to candidate interviews, discussion 

of executive director salary, and board selection of executive director 

February 15, 2024 

 

State Office Tower • 235 South Beretania Street, Suite 205 • Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813 
 (808) 586-0186 • www.dbedt.hawaii.gov/adc 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Subject to Board discussion in executive session pursuant to section 92-5(a)(4), HRS. 

       

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

LYLE ROE 

Asset Manager 

 

Approved for Submittal: 

 

 

Wendy Gady  

Executive Director 

 

075

Lyle Roe

https://stateofhawaii.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAARvFVQmhaqD72mAl5nDcJMKHI25UpTxUV
https://stateofhawaii.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAARvFVQmhaqD72mAl5nDcJMKHI25UpTxUV


EXHIBIT B

076



077



078



079



080



081



082



083



084



085



086



087



088



089



090



091



092



093



094



095



096



097



098



099



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



State Senate, State Capitol 
415 S. Beretania Street, Rm 208 

Honolulu, HI 96813 

The Senate 
S T A T E C A P I T O L 

H O N O L U L U, H A W A I ‘ I    9 6 8 1 3 

November 17, 2023 

Mr. Warren Watanabe, Chair 
Agribusiness Development Corporation 
235 S. Beretania St., Rm 205 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 

Aloha Chair Watanabe: 

An anonymous complaint was filed to the Office of Information Practices against the Agribusiness 
Develoment Corporation (ADC) Board of Directors (Board). This resulted in Formal Opinion No. 24-03 
relating to the Selection of the New Executive Director.  

A request is hereby made for a complete and unredacted copy of the minutes of the ADC Board's executive 
session meeting on August 8, 2023 for the purpose of discussing Agenda Items D.1, D.2 and D.3 relating to 
Executive Director candidate interviews, discussion of Executive Director salary, and board selection of 
Executive Director. 

As the requested government records relate to the selection of the Executive Director by the ADC Board, it 
is the position of the requester that pursuant to Section 92F-14(a), Hawaii Revised Statutes, the public 
interest in disclosure of the executive session minutes outweighs the privacy interest of the individual and 
therefore disclosure of the requested government records shall not constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion 
of personal privacy.  Additionally, it is requested that the attorney-client privilege be waived with regard to 
any records responsive to this request as has been determined to be permissible pursuant to OIP Op. Ltr. No. 
91-23.

I would appreciate your response by 4:00 p.m., November 21, 2023. Please respond via email to Committee 
Clerk Scott Fuji at s.fuji@capitol.hawaii.gov.  Please contact Scott Fuji at 586-6639 with any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Senator Donovan M. Dela Cruz 

EXHIBIT A

147

mailto:s.fuji@capitol.hawaii.gov

	Home
	Agenda
	B-1  Minutes 2023-11-16 Regular Session
	B-2  Minutes 2024-01-16 Regular Session (Deferred)
	B-3  Minutes 2024-01-16 Executive Session (Deferred)
	E-1  Defer
	E-2  MOU Between ADC, HTDC, NELHA, HDOA
	E-3  Right of Entry Delegation
	E-4  No Submittal
	E-5  No Submittal
	E-6  No Submittal
	E-7  No Submittal
	E-8  No Submittal
	E-9  Senator Dela Cruz Request
	F-1  No Material
	F-2  No Material
	F-3  No Material

		2024-02-09T16:27:55-0800
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign




